
Exhibit A 

Nov. 16 2024 Meeting Minutes 

  



 
SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION 

CITY OF PROVIDENCE 
  
  

  
Sustainability Commission Meeting Minutes | November 16, 2024, 4 p.m.  
  
Attendance  

Present:  
Sustainability Commission: Chair Julian Drix, Vice-Chair Vatic Kuumba (tardy), Enza 
Cucitrone, Justice Gaines, Greg Gerritt, Jesus Holguin (virtual), Dwayne Keys 
(tardy) 
Green and Complete Streets Advisory Council: Chair Kathleen Gannon, Alana 
Deluty, Rosie Jaswel, Cedric Ye, Julissa Arce, Denise Greenidge, Allison Murray 
Staff: Priscilla De La Cruz, Director of Sustainability, Kevin Proft, Deputy Director of 
Sustainability, Sophie Worsh-Farnum, Sustainability Policy Associate, Alex Ellis, 
Planning Department, Nate Urso, Department of Public Works, Rosa Arias-Perry, 
Legal Department 

Absent: Chandelle Wilson, Jaylyn McNeill, Leandro Castro 
 

1. Vote to Approve Sustainability Commission Meeting Minutes (for vote) 
The Sustainability Commission did not have a quorum at the beginning of the meeting. After 
the late arrival of Dwayne Keys and Vatic Kuumba, a quorum was reached and the minutes 
were voted on. Motion to approve the minutes of September 23, 2024 by Greg Gerritt. Second 
by Justice Gaines. Approved unanimously. 
 
2. Department Updates (for discussion) 
Priscilla De La Cruz said the Department will soon be developing a 2023-2024 Department 
Report. The Department will present drafts of the report at future commission meetings prior 
to finalizing the report around April 2025.  
 
Priscilla De La Cruz updated the Commission on the implementation of the Building Energy 
Reporting Ordinance (BERO) program. She said the City successfully reported on its covered 
properties during the first year of the program and that the first annual BERO report would be 
published in December. She explained the Department’s approach to the second year of the 
program when private owners of buildings with greater than 50,000 square feet will be 
required to comply with the reporting requirements. 
 
Priscilla De La Cruz updated the Commission on the Department’s effort to pilot rooftop solar 
on five City-owned buildings. She noted that the ongoing legal dispute between PPSD and the 



City over school funding levels could impact the projects. Justice Gaines asked if Federal 
funding was at risk given the outcome of the 2024 election. Priscilla De La Cruz said that the 
City’s goal is to get as much under contract as possible to make it less likely that the money 
could be rescinded. Julian Drix said that a discussion about the federal landscape should be the 
topic of a future commission meeting. He said it could make stricter zoning within the port area 
an even higher priority.  
 
Dwayne Keys arrived. 
 
Kevin Proft said that zoning amendments based on the updated comprehensive plan were 
starting to be considered by the City Plan Commission. Alex Ellis noted that the Planning 
Department’s strategy will be to do a first round of amendments for items where the 
comprehensive plan provides clear guidance and a second round of amendment where 
additional discussion is necessary, which would include port-related items.  
 
Kevin Proft noted that there would be a ProvPort Master Plan meeting on December 9, 2024 
[note: this was later rescheduled to December 16, 2024].  
 
3. Commissioner Updates - None 
 
4. Roll Call for GCSC 
Alex Ellis called roll for the GCSC. GCSC and Sustainability Commission members introduced 
themselves and shared how they see the intersection of Sustainability and Green and Complete 
Streets. 
 
5. Vote to Approve GCSC Meeting Minutes (for GCSC vote) 
GCSC members approved their meeting minutes from October 10, 2024. 
 
6. Overview of Review Procedure & Comparison of Responsibilities (for discussion) 
Alex Ellis discussed the origins and roles of the Sustainability Commission and GCSC. 
 
7. Update on Walk Signal Improvements (for discussion)  
Nate Urso, Traffic Engineer, said that "no right on red” signs are being added to more 
intersections and that the DPW has a plan to install walk signals where absent. 
 
8. Long Range Transportation Plan Equity Analysis (For Discussion) 
Liza Farr, Supervising Planner, RI Division of Statewide Planning, presented on the equity 
analysis requirements and approach of the Long Range Transportation Master Plan. She said 
the goal of the equity analysis is to help avoid the plan resulting in disproportionate adverse 
impacts on low-income residents.  
 



Greg Gerritt recommended using the White House Climate and Economic Justice Screening 
Tool to inform the equity analysis.  
 
Rosie Jaswal recommended having a foundational data layer and then adding additional 
elements on top of the layer. She also commented on the question of benefits vs. burdens and 
how beneficial projects in low-income neighborhoods can lead to gentrification.  
 
Jesus Holguin asked how the equity analyses is going to be used in the plan. Liza Farr said 
Statewide Planning will run draft plans through an equity analysis tool and then run the final 
plan through the equity analysis tool. Jesus Holguin recommended adopting the Just 
Providence Framework as an equitable planning approach during the project. This is the 
framework that was used to develop the Climate Justice Plan. Priscilla De La Cruze said the Just 
Providence Framework was used with the Stormwater Taskforce that supported the Providence 
Sustainable and Equitable Stormwater and Sewer Study and it helped the group come to a 
common understanding about equity as it applied to the project.  
 
A member of the public recommended using SNAP and housing assistance thresholds for the 
equity analysis. 
 
Linda Perri recommended using poverty and tree cover data for the equity analysis.  
 
Kathleen Gannon recommended collaborating with the HEZ’s and recommended giving special 
attention to the areas around schools.  
 
Cedric Ye recommended prioritizing projects in areas where traffic violence has occurred.  
 
Julian Drix said that the way that equity analyses are used is important. It's critical to know how 
funding is being distributed, what projects should be prioritized, and what projects could cause 
harms. In the upcoming federal context, Environmental Justice definitions and resources 
dashboards can’t be relied upon, and there are currently state gaps in EJ definitions that the 
state should fill in.  
 
A member of the public recommended using free and reduced lunch statistics and proximity to 
flood zones and industrial areas like the port for the equity analysis.  
 
There was a question about who benefits from the project – those who live in the 
neighborhood where the improvement is made or those who use the improvement to pass 
through the neighborhood.  
 
Vatic Kuumba arrived 
 



9. Safe Streets for All Update (For Action by GCSC) 
Alex Ellis said the Safe Streets for All Project is a federal grant that will enable the City to 
complete bike and pedestrian focused infrastructure projects as well as update the City’s Safe 
Streets Action Plan. He said the Planning Department held public meetings regarding SS4A in 
October 2024, an updated Safe Streets Action Plan will be complete in early 2025, further 
public engagement will occur in spring 2025, and construction projects will be substantially 
complete by the end of 2027. 
 
Alex Ellis shared crash data from the last several years. The highest number of fatal and serious 
injury crashes was during COVID when there was less traffic and people were able to drive 
faster. He also noted that a disproportionate number of deaths/serious injuries were people 
outside of cars. People inside cars have multiple protective strategies and people walking or 
biking do not. He also discussed the temporal distribution of fatal and serious injury crashes, 
noting that the highest number of accidents occurred during rush hour and in the evening. He 
said one goal of the data analysis was to produce maps of where the City should focus 
resources to improve safety.   
 
Justice Gaines recommended using age data in the analysis.  
 
A GCSC member recommended considering drunk driving data.  
 
Alex Ellis said the project will also update the urban trail network and also reviewed the draft 
policy recommendations to be included in the plan. He noted that many of these have already 
been vetted during other planning processes include the comprehensive plan update process. 
The categories of recommendations include safety (signal improvements, bump outs, speed 
limits) and broader mobility recommendations. GCSC made recommendations about the urban 
trail network and the policy recommendations. 
 
Linda Perri recommended protecting trees less than 32” and requested the groups provide joint 
support to eliminate diesel trucks in residential neighborhoods.  
 
Dwayne Keys said that irresponsible driver behavior is a problem, particularly around schools. 
He appreciates the traffic calming measures but also said that they can inadvertently result in 
irresponsible driver behavior, for example, if a driver is stuck behind someone traveling at low 
speed, who wants to drive faster.  
 
There was a discussion about the importance of enforcement. Dwayne Keys said that 
enforcement can be inequitable with drivers on Thurbers Ave getting tickets and drivers on 
Hope Street getting warnings.  
 



There was a discussion about finding ways to make drivers ed more affordable and equitable so 
everyone could participate, with the example that in Florida, drivers ed is part of the school 
curriculum.  
 
Alanna Deluty said that reducing the need to drive should be prioritized. A better 
transportation network can permit people to eliminate their car or one of their cars and save 
them thousands of dollars per year.  
 
There was widespread discussion that infrastructure must be built to be intuitive and result in 
safer driving behavior and fewer crashes.  
 
Julian Drix recommended focusing resources in places where the safe streets data and maps 
and commercial and freight routes overlap.  
 
Alanna Deluty recommended considering whether a potential reduction in federal funding 
opportunities during the Trump presidency could mean we should reprioritize the way we are 
spending the money we already have to ensure critical projects get done. Alex Ellis said it is 
probably too late to change the project list for the SS4A funding. He also said that if the budget 
for the projects in SS4A does not cover all of the proposed projects, Alanna’s point could come 
into play. There was discussion about prioritizing safety and avoiding redundancy. 
 
A member of the public recommended replacing broken flexposts along bike lanes.  

 
10. Announcements, Staff Updates, and Public Comment (for Discussion) 
Alex Elis said the comprehensive plan had been finalized. He said the Planning Department is 
applying for a State Commerce grant for pedestrian safety in Wayland Square. He said they 
were working to get a smaller SS4A grant under contract, which would include projects like 
daylighting intersections.  

 
11. Potential Topics for Future Joint Sustainability Commission/GCSC Meetings (for discussion) 
There was discussion about potential topics including: EV infrastructure planning, EV goals and 
strategy, green infrastructure, equitable stormwater and sewer financing. 
 
Julian Drix asked whether GCSC ever submitted letters supporting or opposing key issues. Alex 
said they do submit advisory letters, but they are usually more technocratic in nature than the 
letters the Sustainability Commission submits. With that said, there was agreement that where 
interests align, a potential join letter could be drafted.  
Public Comment 
 
Linda Perry requested a weight limit for trucks on Public Street after improvements are made.  
 



Exhibit B 

Department Updates – December 2024 

 

  



Department of Sustainability 
25 Dorrance Street, Providence, Rhode Island 02903 

Phone: 401.680.5476  |  www.providenceri.gov 

 
MAYOR BRETT P. SMILEY 
CITY OF PROVIDENCE 
 
 

Sustainability Department Update | 12.4.24 
  
Zoning Amendments [12.2024] 
• Project Description: Following approval of the comprehensive plan, the City is required to update its zoning 

ordinance and other land use regulations to align with the goals and strategies included in the 
comprehensive plan. Among other items, this will include amendments to permit increased residential 
density in the City’s zoning districts and potential changes to land use regulations impacting development 
in the Port of Providence and the City’s other industrial areas.  

• The Sustainability Department is working with the Planning Department on zoning amendments that align 
with the language of the updated comprehensive plan and help implement the goals and strategies of the 
Climate Justice Plan. 
 

ProvPort Master Plan [12.2024] 
• Project Description: As part of the ProvPort lease agreement, ProvPort is required to partner with the City’s 

Planning Department to develop a Port Master Plan. This plan will guide the strategic direction of the port 
over a 30-year period. Among other elements, the plan will include chapters on community development 
and sustainability.  

• Public Engagement Update: ProvPort has convened a Master Plan Advisory Committee, including near-port 
residents, to advise on the plan. ProvPort held its first public meeting in September, where it explained the 
master planning process, identified opportunities for public engagement, took comment, and conducted an 
activity to identify and rank community priorities. Public health concerns were a high priority for attendees. 
The next Advisory Committee meeting is on December 9 and the next public meeting is on December 16. 
The Master Plan website includes resources and public engagement opportunities/dates.  

• The Sustainability Department is meeting with the Planning Department and ProvPort to help ensure 
comprehensive plan and Climate Justice Plan strategies are incorporated into the Master Plan where 
applicable.  

• Additionally, as part of the ProvPort lease agreement, the Sustainability Department, with consultation 
from the Sustainability Commission, oversees the Sustainability Projects Reserve Account, which will fund 
“sustainability projects” identified in the Master Plan. ProvPort must deposit 1% of annual revenue or a 
minimum of $120,000 into the account per year. Sustainability is working with ProvPort and the 
Sustainability Commission to develop a protocol around the use of the Sustainability Project Reserve 
Account.   

Sustainable Stormwater and Sewer Assessment Study [12.2024] 
• Project Description: The sustainable stormwater and sewer study is analyzing the City’s existing stormwater 

system, identifying deficiencies, and recommending a sustainable financing mechanism to make 
improvements and maintain the system into the future.  

• The Sustainability Department is supporting the Stormwater Task Force which is comprised of individuals 
from several key stakeholder groups that represent a wide set of interests. Task Force members’ unique 
knowledge and skills are helping guide the project by making recommendations and providing key 

https://www.provportmasterplan.org/event-list


2 
 

information. The Task Force reviews and provides feedback on the consultant’s draft deliverables including 
funding needs and financing analysis.  

• The final Task Force meeting will be on December 6. This five-hour workshop consists of a final 
presentation by the project consultant about the overall cost projections for sanitary sewer and 
stormwater capital and program needs for the next ten years. The Consultant will also present the funding 
model to compare the impacts of how those costs could be borne by property taxpayers vs. how they 
would affect ratepayers. The task force will then apply the criteria we have collectively developed to 
evaluate the cost projections and the model presented by the consultant and decide on their 
recommendations.   

• The final assessment study report is on track to be completed in March. 
 

BERO Implementation [12.2024] 
• Project Description: The Building Energy Reporting Program ordinance (BERO) requires building owners of 

buildings over 20,000 square feet to report their building’s energy use to the City for public disclosure. The 
goal of the program is to permit building owners to understand how their building performs compared to 
peer buildings and enable cost-effective energy upgrades. The program will also provide the City with data 
to inform future decarbonization policies. 

• The Department is (1) designing the Building Energy Reporting Program, (2) securing necessary software 
and services for implementation, and (3) reporting on municipal properties. The City was required to 
report on its own buildings in May 2024, privately-owned buildings over 50,000 sf are required to report 
May 2025, and buildings over 20,000 sf are required to report in May 2026. Disclosure of energy use is 
required annually in October. 

• The Department is beginning outreach to “covered properties” or the owners of buildings with over 50,000 
square feet about their reporting requirements this month.  

 
Municipal Energy 
• The Department has executed an agreement with PowerOptions to develop a decarbonization plan for 

municipal buildings, required by City ordinance. The study will focus on efficiency improvements, HVAC 
upgrades, and operations management. The study will prioritize facility upgrades based on equipment age 
and environmental benefits. The study will include a high-level feasibility analysis of rooftop solar on City-
owned buildings. [12.2024] 

• The Department has developed a strategy to deploy renewable energy on municipal rooftops and 
property. The strategy includes an initial round of pilot projects to be installed over the next two years and 
a study to inform future project selection. The initial round of pilot projects includes the Public Safety 
Complex, The Parks Department’s Carriage House, Narducci Learning Center, D’Abate Elementary School, 
and Spaziano Elementary School. Together, these projects will have a capacity of 722 kW (DC), producing 
enough energy to power 129 New England homes1. [12.2024] 

• Energy Credits: In 2018, the City entered a 20-year contract with Southern Sky Renewable Energy, now 
Captona Solar Partners LLC to buy net metering credits generated from three solar energy facilities located 
in Cranston and Johnston. Since then, the credits have been allocated to mostly City and a few PPSD 
electricity accounts where they have helped reduce the cost of electric bills. Following the PPSD budget 
settlement, more credits will be applied to PPSD accounts. PPSD will keep the full value of the credits and 
the City will cover the administrative costs associated with the credits.  [12.2024] 

 
1 Assumes an average monthly electricity use of 500kWh per home. 



3 
 

• Sustainability is coordinating with Public Property on various elements of the new DPW Headquarters. This 
includes a feasibility analysis to implement a ground source heat pump (i.e. geothermal) to heat and cool 
the building. All geological studies indicate the site will support a ground source heat pump installation. A 
cost estimate should be completed shortly which will inform our decision on using a ground source heat 
pump system vs another system that complies with the building decarbonization ordinance. [12.2024]   

• Utility Bill and Energy Management: RI Energy paperless billing and autopay updates to our 762 accounts 
are 90% complete. All of the utility billing administration, now integrated with our energy management 
software, will be managed by Energy Manager Andrew Broccolo, supported by Fiscal and Communications 
Coordinator, Julie Dearden. These tasks were transferred from Finance and Public Property to 
Sustainability to speed processing time and allow oversight to catching potential billing errors and building 
inefficiencies. The next phase of this utility management transition will focus on transferring and 
revamping our payment process for our municipal accounts with Providence Water and NBC from Public 
Property to Sustainability. [12.2024]  

 
City Vehicle Fleet 
• The City’s recently approved 2024 Master Lease included $100,000 in funding for EV infrastructure to be 

administered by the Sustainability Department. The Department is working with the City’s Fleet Manager 
and vehicle-owning departments, like the Parks Department and Department of Public Works, to plan and 
implement projects with this funding. The Department issued an RFP to add charging infrastructure to the 
Boathouse and Carriage House in RWP for Parks Department use on November 4, 2024. [12.2024] 

• The City was awarded $227,000 in U.S. DOE Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant funding from 
the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law. The funding will go towards updating the City’s Fleet Electrification 
Study during winter 2024 and then implementing charging infrastructure per the updated study’s 
recommendations. The City is currently holding scoping meetings with NREL, our TA provider, to flesh out 
the scope of the study update. [12.2024] 

 
Citywide Vehicle Electrification [12.2024] 
• The State of Rhode Island received a Charging and Fueling Infrastructure grant from the Federal Highway 

Administration. The City is a partner on the grant. The grant will enable the City to install approximately 28 
publicly accessible chargers on public property and develop a strategy to support the transition of 
privately-owned vehicles to EVs. 

 
Waste Reduction [12.2024] 
• The City issued a Waste Removal Services RFP on October 7, 2024 aimed at securing a new contract with a 

trash and recycling hauler. The RFP includes a number of clauses aimed at improving waste diversion rates 
including: (1) a potential performance bonus for reducing overall waste tonnage, (2) the deployment of 
RFID tag hardware and software to inform education and enforcement efforts, among other benefits, and 
(3) development of a public education plan. The RFP also included an add alternate for vendors to propose 
a food waste diversion pilot program and prohibited the use of diesel and requested an outline of the 
vendor’s strategy to transition their fleet to EV trucks. Bids were opened at the December 2, 2024 BOCS 
meeting and will now be reviewed. [12.2024] 

• USDA CFWR compost grant implementation is ongoing. Programs include (1) free backyard compost 
mentorships, (2) improvements to the community composting drop-off site network, (3) education and 
outreach on composting and local food waste diversion options, (4) implementation of cafeteria waste 
diversion efforts in Providence Public Schools, and (5) technical assistance for institutions to divert food 
waste. [12.2024] 



4 
 

• USEPA SWIFR recycling & compost infrastructure grant implementation is ongoing. Programs include (1) 
new carts for one solid waste route day and a recycling education campaign, (2) business recycling pilot, 
(3) TA for businesses and institutions to divert waste, (4) partial construction funding for West End 
Compost Hub (Groundwork RI), (5) vehicle and equipment purchases for ReMix Organics, a local, 
commercial food waste hauler. [12.2024] 

 
Public Street Waterfront Access Project [12.2024] 
• Project Description: The Sustainability Department is working with community to design and construct 

improvements at Public Street between Allens Avenue and the river. This street has been designated a 
public right-of-way to the waterfront by the Coastal Resources Management Agency, but to offer 
meaningful access to the waterfront, improvements aimed at pedestrian safety and site aesthetics are 
needed.  

• The Sustainability Department secured $175,000 towards final design (NBEP and local funds) and has hired 
Fuss & O’Neill as the project consultant. The goal is to complete design by February-March 2025. 

• The Department conducted a round of stakeholder engagement during summer 2024. The Department is 
now finalizing a schematic design that balances the priorities of the public, abutting business and property 
owners, and the administration. The next step will be to progress the design to the engineering and 
permitting phase. Ideally, the design phase of the project will be complete in late-winter/early-spring 
2025, with construction to follow.   

• The City has secured ~$1.5M towards construction (SNEP, RIIB, local funds). The goal is to construct the 
project by December 2025. 

 
Resilience Hubs [12.2024]  
• Project Description: The Olneyville Resilience Hub at Joslin Recreation Center is the City’s first pilot resilience 

hub. The goal of the resilience hub is to provide a space where residents can connect to needed community 
services and shelter in the event of a disruption like a storm or high heat.  

• The Department and hub partners are facilitating a public engagement effort relating to major building 
renovations at Joslin Recreation Center funded by the State’s Capital Project Fund. Final design will be 
completed by April 2025 with construction planned to commence summer 2025. The length of the 
construction period cannot be determined until the scope is finalize.  

• Recent activity at the hub has included language exchange classes, Nuevas Voces classes, WRWC speakers 
series, vaccine clinics, youth mental health programming, and events focused on community health 
opportunities with RIDOH, among others. CAPP has standing office hours at the hub.  

• Barr Foundation funding has enabled three multilingual residents to be trained to teach PEMA's Until Help 
Arrives course in Spanish, something not previously available to residents.  

• The Hub has hosted several meetings to discuss reinvigorating the Joslin Community Garden. There have 
been two garden workdays where community members and staff have begun to prep the garden so beds 
can be used by community for the upcoming growing season.  

• The Resilience Hub Manager and the Community Resilience Committee have continued to conduct 
outreach and distribution for the Lead-Free Water Project grant. Currently, they have successfully 
distributed more than 1,000 of 2,000 lead water filters to residents of 02908 and 02909.    

 
Grants [12.2024] 
• The City is working with One Neighborhood Builders on a US EPA Community Change Grant to support 

comprehensive home improvements for low-income households. These improvements will include energy 
upgrades, lead abatement, and stormwater management, among others. The grant also includes a 



5 
 

workforce development component whereby residents could be trained in the fields associated with the 
improvements being undertaken. Finally, funding for soft costs associated with the Olneyville Resilience 
Hub are included in the grant. The application was submitted in early November. 

  



Exhibit C 

Draft 2025 Sustainability Commission Calendar 

  



 
SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION 

CITY OF PROVIDENCE 
 
 
2025 Regular Meeting Calendar  
 
Tuesday, January 27  (to accommodate MLK Jr. Day) 
Tuesday, February 18  (to accommodate President’s Day) 
Monday, March 17 
Monday, April 21 
Monday, May 19 
Monday, June 16 
Monday, July 21 
Monday, August 18 
Monday, September 15 
Monday, October 20 
Monday, November 17 
Monday, December 15 



Exhibit D 

PVD Tree Plan Endorsement Letter 

  



 
SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION 

CITY OF PROVIDENCE 
 
December 16, 2024 
 
RE: Providence Tree Plan Endorsement 
 
To Cassie Tharinger, 
 
On behalf of the Providence Sustainability Commission, I write to you in support of the Providence Tree 
Plan. Expanding the tree canopy in Providence is a key priority of the Sustainability Commission, as it 
offers a plethora of benefits for residents and the environment, including improving air quality, reducing 
the heat island effect, lowering electricity use/cost, stormwater management, water filtration, and more. 
As the climate continues to change and Providence experiences hotter summers and more frequent severe 
weather events, an established tree canopy that can dissipate the worst of these effects is critical, 
particularly for residents in environmental justice neighborhoods that experience the highest air pollution, 
worst flooding, and lowest tree canopy.  
 
The Commission appreciates the steering committee’s thoughtful community planning process and the 
impressive reach and representativeness of the community survey, which found that over 98% of 
residents think we should increase investment in Providence’s trees. The PVD Tree Plan Planning process 
and findings run parallel to the Climate Justice Plan, which was also developed in partnership between 
residents and the City and identifies tree equity in Providence as a critical goal. The Providence Tree Plan 
represents an action-oriented and equity driven approach to this goal and is in clear alignment with the 
Sustainability Commission’s priorities. 
 
The Sustainability Commission enthusiastically endorses the PVD Tree Plan. Thank you for your 
attention to this important issue. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
_______________________________ 
Julian Drix, Chair 
Sustainability Commission 



Exhibit E 

Tax Exemption Agreement for ProvPort Inc. 

 

 

 




























